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SUSAN FIERING 
Supervising Deputy Attorney General 
JAMIE JEFFERSON 
Deputy Attorney General 
State Bar No. 197142 

1515 Clay Street, 20th Floor 
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Fax: (510) 622·2270 
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~ OF)I!E ~eRlOR COUfIT 

( .-
Attorneys for People oj the Stale a/California ex reI. 
California Department o/Toxic Substances Control 

SUPERIOR COURT OF THE STATE OF CALIFORNIA 

COUNTY OF ALAMEDA 

PEOPLE OrTHI::: STATE 0,.-CALIFORNIA ex 
rei DEBORAH O. RAPHAEL, DIRECTOR, 
CALIFORNIA DEPARTMENT OF TOXIC 
SUBSTANCES CONTROL, 

Plaintiff, 

v, 

CE TOLAND & SON, and DOES 1 to 20, 

Defendants. 

Case No. RG14713998 
COMPLAINT FOR CIVIL PENAL TIES 
AND INJUNCTIVE RELIEF 

20 The People of the State of Cali fomi a ex reI. Deborah O. Raphael, Director, Department of 

21 Toxic Substances Control (the "Department"), allege the following: 

22 STATEMENT OF THE CASE 

23 1. Defend.ant C.E. Toland & Son, a California corporation (,'Toland" or "Defendant"), 

24 owns and operates a metal fabricating facility at 5300 Industrial Way, Benicia, California 94510 

25 (the "Facility"). Defendant specializes in ornamental metal work, producing stairs, stair rails and 

26 other metal products. Defendant employs approximately 42 employees. In the course of its 

27 operations, DeFendant generates, handles, treats, stores, and/or disposes of hazardous waste at or 

28 
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from the Facility. The Facility qualifies as a hazardous waste facility under California Health and 

2 Safety Code section 25117.1. 

3 2. While operating the Facility, Defendant violated the California Hazardous Waste 

4 Control Law, Chapter 6.5 of Division 20 of the California Health and Safety Code, sections 

5 25100 et seq. ("HWCL"), and the implementing regulations, California Code of Regulations, 

6 Title 22, Division 4.5. 

7 3. The Department hereby seeks civil penalties and injunctive relief from Defendant for 

8 its violations of th~ HWCL and its implementing regulations. 

9 PLAINTIFF 

10 4. The Department is a public agency of the State ofCali,fomia organized and existing 

11 under and pursuant to Health and Safety Code sections 58000 et seq. 

12 

\3 

5. 

6. 

Deborah O. Raphael is the Director of the Department. 

Pursuant to secti.on 25182 of the Health and Safety Code, the Attorney General of the 

14 State of California is authorized, at the request of the Department, to commence an action in the 

15 name of the People for civil penalties under the HWCL. The Department has requested the 

16 Anomey General to seek civi l penalties in this case and injunctive reliefagainsl Defendant. 

17 DEFENDANT 

18 

19 

7. 

8. 

Defendant is a California corporation with headquarters in Benicia, California. 

Defendant is a metal fabr icator specializing in ornamental metal work, such as stairs, 

20 rails and other ornamental-metal products. Hazardous waste is generated in the course ofnorrnal 

21 operations as a result of metal prepping, cutting, welding and painting. Defendant also generates 

22 hazardous metal dust during cutting, 'polishing, and buffing activities at the Facility. 

23 9. Defendant is a "person" as defined in Health and Safety Code section 25118. Further, 

24 Defendant is an "owner" and/or "operator" of a hazardous waste facility and a "generator" of a 

25 hazardous waste at the Facility, as defined at California Code of Regulations, title 22, section 

26 66260.10. 

27 10. When reference is made in this Complaint to any act of Defendant, such allegation 

28 shall mean that the owners, officers, directors, agents, employees, contractors, and representatives 
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of Defendant did or authorized such acts or recklessly and/or negligently failed and omitted to 

2 adequately or properly supervise, control, or direct Defendant's employees, representatives, or 

3 agents while engaged in the management, direction, operation, or control oflhe affairs qf 

4 Defendant and did so while acting within the course and scope of their employment or agency. 

5 11 . Defendants Does 1-20 are the officers, agents, employees, servants, or others acting 

6 in interest or concert with Defendant. The Department is ignorant of the true names of defendants 

7 sued herein as Does 1-20. When the names of these defendants have been ascertained, the 

8 Department will seek leave to amend the Complaint. 

9 JURISDICTION AND VENUE 

1 ° 12. This Court has j urisdiction pursuant to Cal. Const., art. VI, § 10, and Health and 

II Safety Code section 25181, subdivision (a). Venue is proper under Health and Safety Code 

12 section 25183. Although the princ ipal office of the Defendant is located in Benicia, Cal ifornia 

13 which is in Solano County, Alameda County is the county where the Attorney General has an 

14 office nearest to the county in which the principal office of the Defendant is located,and therefore 

1 S venue is proper in Alameda County. 

16 STATUTORY AND REGULATORY BACKGROUND 

17 13. The State of California has a comprehensive - "cradle to grave" - statutory and 

18 regulatory framework for the generation, handling, treatment, storage, transport, and disposal of 

19 hazardous wastes. The HWCL's implementing regulations specJfy requireme'1ts for the tracking, 

20 storage, treatment, and disposal of hazardous waste to protect the public from the risks posed by 

21 improper management of hazardous wastes. (Cal. Code Regs., tit. 22, § 662~O.1 et seq.) 

22 14. The HWCL is the California analogue of the federal Resource Conservation and 

23 Recovery Act, 42 U.S.c. § 6901 et seq. ("RCRA"). Pursuant to s.tate arid federall~w, the 

24 Department administers the HWCL in lieu of federal administration ofRCRA in California. (See 

2S Health & Sar. Code, § 2S 1 0 I, subd. (d); Caiifornia:' Final Authorization of Revision~ to State 

26 Hazardous Waste Management Program, 66 FR 491,18 (September ~6. 2001).) Federal law 

27 prohibits California from imposing "any requirements less stringent than those authorized under 

28 [RCRA]." (42 U.S.c. § 6929.) 
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I . 15. State law - the HWCL - has a morc inclusive definition of hazardous waste than does 

2 federal law. Hazardous wastes that are regulated under California law but not federal law are 

3 known as "non-RCRA hazardous wastes." (Health & Saf. Code, § 25117.9.) 

4 16. A person, as defined in Health a,nd Safety Code section 251l8, who generates 

5 hazardous wasle must determine if the waste is hazardous using the methods outlined in 

6 California Code of Regulations, title 22, sections 66262.11 ("Hazardous Waste Determination") 

7 and 66260.200 ("Classification of a Waste as Hazardous or Nonhazardous") . If the waste is 

8 hazardous, the generator must manage it in accordance with the regulations governing generators 

9 of hazardous waste. (See Cal. Code Regs., tit. 22, §§ 66262.11 and 66260.200, subd. (c).) 

10 Defendant is subject to these requirements. If a generator incorrectly classifies halardous wast!-! 

II as non-hazardous. the generator may be s.ubject to an enforcement action. (See Cal. Code Regs., 

12 tit. 22, 66260.200(d).) 

13 17. Generators of hazardous waste that hold hazardous waste at their facility are subject 

14 to the hazardous waste management facility requirements of California Code of Regulations, title 

IS 22, section 66262.34, subdivision (a). A generator who treats, stores, or disposes of hazardous 

16 waste on-site shall comply with 'the applicable standards and permit requirements set forth in 

17 chapters 14, IS, 16', 18 and 20 of Division 4.5, California Code of Regulations, title 22, sections 

18 66260.10 et seq. (Cal. Code Regs., tit. 22, § 66262.10.) Because hazardous waste istreated and 

19 stored at the Facility prior to its shipment off site, Defendant is subject to these requirements. 

20 18. In 1992, California adopted a tiered permitting scheme for hazardous waste 

21 management facilities . (The Wright-Polanco-Lempert Hazardous Waste Treatment Permit 

22 Reform Act of 1992, Stats. 1992, e. 1345 (A.B. 1772).) 

23 19. The middle tier of California's tiered permitting scheme for hazardous waste 

24 management facilities is known as permit-by-rulc. (CaJ. Code Regs., tit. 22, § 67450.1 ["Permit 

25 Requirement"] et seq.) It is avai lable to hazardous waste generators who treat certain hazardous 

26 wastes by the treatment processes specified in California Code of Regulations , Title 22, section 

27 67450.11. Defendant is subject'to the permit-by-rule requirements. 

28 III 
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20. A "Certified Unified Program Agency," or "CUP A," is an agency certified by the 

Z California Environmental Protection Agency pursuant to the requirements of Chapter 6.11 of the 

3 Health and Safety Code, and Title 27 of the California Code of Regulations, to implement certain 

4 State environmental programs within the agency's jurisdiction. (Health & Safety Code section 

5 2550 I (h)( 1)) In addition to falling under the jurisdiction of the Department, Defendant falls 

6 within the jurisdiction of the Solano County Health Department, Environmental Health Services 

7 Division, which is its local CUPA. 

8 ENFORCEMENT AUTHORITY UNDER THE HWCL 

9 . 21. The HWCL authorizes the' Court to impose civil penalties un'def two distinct and 

10 alternative provisions. Section 25189 of the Health and Safety Code creates liability for any 

11 negligent or intentional violation of the HWCL. Section 25189.2 is a strict liability provision, 

12 which creates liability, on a strict liability basis, for any violation of the HWCL. Each day of 

13 violation of each provision ~fthe HWCL is a separate violation, subject to penalty under Health 

14 and Safety Code sections 25189 or 25189.2. 

15 22. The HWCL authorizes the Court to impose injunctive relief under two distinct 

16 provisions. Section 25181 of the Health and Safety Code allows the Department to seek an 

17 injunction to for practices which violate this Chapter; and Section 25184 provides that the 

J 8 Department does not have to allege irreparable damage will occur without such injunction. 

19 THE DEPARTMENT'SINSPECTION OF THE FACILITY 

20 23. On October 47th, 201 I, November 17th, 201 1 and March 29, 2012, the Department, 

21 through its inspectors, conducted regulatory inspections of the Facility (the "Ins·pections"). At the 

22 conclusion of the Inspections, the Department issued a Summary of Violations and Summary of 

23 Observations to Defendant. In July, 2012, the Department issued an Inspection Report to 

24 Defendant. 

25 II I 

26 III 

27 II I 

28 III 
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FIRST CAUSE OF ACTION 

(Unauthorized Storage and Accumulation of Hazardous Waste) 
(Health & Saf. Code, § 25201, subd. (a» 

(Cal. Code Regs., tit. 22, § 66262.34, subd. (a» 

4 24. . Paragraphs 1 through 23 are re-alleged as if fully set forth herein. 

5 25. Health and Safety Code section 25201, subdivision (a), prohibits an owner or operator 

6 ofa storage or treatment facility from, inter alia, storing hazardous waste at a facility unless the 

7 owner or operator has a permit or grant of authorization from the Department 

8 26. California Code of Regulations, title 22, section 66262.34; subdivision (a), allows a 

9 facility to accumulate hazardous waste for greater than 90 days only' with a permit or 

10 authorization from the Department. 

II 27. Since on or before June 29, 2012, Defendant stored hazardous wastes (including, 

12 copper, selenium, and zinc) in the Facility's oil-water separator beyond the 90 day limit on 

13 fourteen separate occurrences) without a pennit or grant of authorization by the Department 

. 14 28. Since on and before April 1, 20 II, March 1, 20 I O. and August 31, 20 I 0, and 

15 continuing thereafter, Defendant stored used oil in four fifty-five (55) gallon containers for 

16 greater than ninety (90) days at the Facility without a pennit or authorization from the 

17 Department. 

18 29. Since on and before October 27, 2011 , and continuing thereafter, until June 28, 2012, 

19 Defendant stored hazardous waste (bag house dust) in containers for over ninety (90) days at the 

20 Facility without a pennit or grant of authorization from the Department. 

21 30. Defendant violated Health and Safety Code section 2520 I, subdivision (a), and 

22 California Code of Regulations, title 22, section 66262.34, subdivision (a), in that Defendant ' 

23 stored the above-mentioned hazardous waste at the Facility in containers and tanks, respectively, 

24 for over 90 days without a permit or grant of authorizatio n from the Department. 

25 31. Defendant is liable for civil penalties under Health and Sa~ety Code sections 25189 or 

26 25189.2 for its violations of Health and Safety Code section 2520 I, subdivision (a), and 

27 California Code of Regulat ions, title 22, section 66262.34, subdivision (a). 

28 III 
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SECOND CAUSE OF ACTION 

(Unauthorized Disposal of Hazardous Waste) 
(Health & Saf. Code, §§ 25201, subd. (a), and 25189.5, subd. (a)) 

(Cal. Code Regs., tit. 22 § 66265.31 & § 66266.130) 

4 32. Paragraphs 1 thro~gh 31 are re-alleged as if fully set forth herein. 

5 33. Health and Safety Code section 25201, subdivision (a), prohibits an owner or operator 

6 of a storage or treatment facility from, inter alia, disposing of hazardous waste at a faci lity unless 

7 the owner or operator has a pennit or grant of authorization from the Department. 

8 34. Health and Safety Code section 25189.5, subdivision (a), prohibits disposal of 

9 hazardous waste when the disposal is at a facility that does not have a pennit from the 

10 Department, or at any point that is not authorized. 

11 35; Since on and before December 10,2008, and continuing thereafter, Defendant 

12 violated Health and Safety Code sections 25201, subdivision (a), and 25 189.5, subdivision (a), in 

\3 that Defendant engaged in the unauthorized disposal of hazardous waste. 

14 36. Defendant disposed of bag house dust in the Facility's dumpster. Subsequent testing 

15 confirmed that the bag house dust contained hazardous quantities of copper and thus was' a 

16 hazardous waste. 

17 37. Defendant disposed of five (5) used oil filters in the dumpster/trash destined for 

18 disposal at a municipal landfill. 

19 38. Defendant disposed of hazardous paint waste on the ground and in the Facility's 

20 dumpster. 

21 39. Defendant disposed of hazardous smog hog waste dust in the Facility's garbage: 

22 which is destined for disposal at a municipal landfill. 

23 40. Finally, Defendant disposed of ignitable and toxic waste from their underground oil-

24 water separator to the local publicly-owned treatment works facili ty. 

25 41. Defendant does not have a permit or grant of authori zation from the Department for 

26 disposal of hazardous waste in these manners. 

27 I I I 

28 I I I 
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42. Defendant is liable for civil penalties under Health and Safety Code section 2S 189 or 

2S 189.2 for its violations of Health and Safety Code se,ctions 25201, subdivision (a), and 

25189.5, subdivision (a), and California Code of Regulations, title 22 §§ 66265.31 & 66266.130. 

THIRD CAUSE OF ACTION 
(Failure to Make Hazardous Waste Determination) 
(Cal. C~de Regs., tit. 22, § 66262.11 & 66260.200) 

6 43. Paragraphs 1 through 42 are Te-alleged as if fully set forth herein. 

7 44. California·Code of Regulations. title 22, section 66262.11, requires a generator of 

8 waste to make a dctcnnination prior to its disposal whether a waste is hazardous or not, using 

9 certain prescribed methods. 45. Defendant failed to conduct a complete waste determination 

10 and discarded baghouse dust into the trash. The baghouse dust contained hazardous levels of 

11 copper. 

12 46. Defendant also violated California Code of Regulations, title 22, section 66262.11, by 

13 failing to detennine prior to their disposal that the smog hog dust was hazardous for zinc. 

14 47. Defendant is liable for civil penalties under Health and Safety Code section 25189 or 

15 

16 

17 

18 

25189.2 for its violations of California Code ofReguiations, title 22, sections 66262.11 & 

66260.200. 

FOURTH CAUSE OF ACTION 
. (Failure to Provide Secondary Containment) 

(Cal. Code Regs., tit. 22, §§ 66265.193 

19 48. Paragraphs I through 47 are re-alleged as if fully set forth herein. 

20 49. California Code of Regulations, title 22, section 66265.193, requires that each 

21 hazardous waste tank system at a hazardous waste management fac.ility have secondary 

22 containment to prevent the release of hazardous waste or constituents to the environment. 

23 50. Defendant failed to provide secondary containment for their 1,000 gallon · 

24 underground oil-water separator tank system. 

25 51. Defendant is liable for civil penalties under Health and Safety Code section 25189 or 

26. 25189.2 for its violations of California Code of Regulations, tille 22, sections 6626~. I 93 and 

27 66265.196. 

28 III 
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FIFTH CAUSE OF ACTION 
(Failure to Train Employees) 

2 (Cal. Code Regs, tit. 22, § 66265.16 (a-e» 

3 52. Paragraphs 1 through 51 are re-alleged as if fully set forth herein. 

4 53. California Code of Regulations, title 22, section 66265.16 (,'Personnel Training"), 

5 requires that a facility managing hazardous waste have a training plan for its employees; that 

6 facility personnel participate in hazardous waste training classes that include certain specified 

7 elements; and that the facility keep records of the training recei~cd by each, employee. Personnel 

8 must also receive annual updates of this hazardous waste training. Section 66260.10 defines 

9 fac ility personnel to mean all "persons who work at, or oversee the operations of, a hazardous 

10 waste facility, and whose actions or failure to act may result in non~compliance" with the HWCL 

11 regulations. 

12 54. Since on and before March 29, 2012 and continuing thereafter, Defendant violated 

13 California Code of Regulations, title 22, section 66265.16, in that Defendant's employees had not 

14 receiyed hazardous waste training as required by this regulation. The Department is infonned and 

15 believes that most if not all of Defendant's employees, except for administrative staff, had 

16 responsibilities for management of hazardous waste at the Faci lity, as the term "management" is 

17 defined under the HWCL. (Cal. Health & Safety Code section 25117.2) 

18 55. The Department is informed and believes that at the time of the Inspections, the 

19 Facility had no records of employee fraining plan or records indicating that the employees were 

20 properly trained. In 2006, the Department informed Defendant's representative that the cmp.loy.ee 

21 training plan they provided would not suffice for employee training for a large quantity generator. 

22 56. Defendant is liable for civil penalties under Health and Safety Code section 25189 or 

23 25189.2 for fail ing to train each employee as required under California Code of Regulations, 

24 section 66265. 16. 

25 III 

26 III 

27 III 

28 III 

9 

Complaint for Civ il Penalties and Injunct ive Relief 



• • 
SIXTH CAUSE OF ACTION 

(Failure to Provide Wriltcn Integrity Assessment of Underground Separator System) 
2 (Cal. Code Regs., tit. 22, section 66265.192) 

3 57. Paragraphs I through 56 are re-alleged as if fully set forth herein. 

4 58. California Code of Regulations, title 22, section 66265.192 provides that an "owner 

5 or operator shall obtain a written assessment reviewed and certified by an independent, qualified, 

6 professional engineer, registered in California in accordance with section 66270.11 (d) attesting 

7 that the system has sufficient structural integrity, is acceptable for the transferring, storing and 

8 . treating of hazardous waste, and that the tanks and containment system are suitably designed." 

9 59. Defendant did not conduct a tank assessment as required by California Code of 

10 Regulations. title 22. section 66265.192. 

II 60. Defendant is liable for civil -penalties under Health and Safety Code section 25189 or 

12 25189.2 for its violations of California Code of Regulations, title 22, section 66265 .192 

I) SEVENTH CAUSE OF ACTION 
(Failure to Provide Evidence of Daily Inspections) 

14 (Cal. Code Regs., title 22, section 66265.195) 

15 61. Paragraphs I through 60 are re-alleged as if fully set forth herein. 

16 62. California Code of Regulations. title 22, sect ion 66265.195 provides that an owner or 

17 operator of a facility shall provide written evidence of daily inspections of tank system. 

18 63. Defendant did not conduct a single daily tank inspection. 

19 64. Defendant is liable for civil penalties under Health and Safety Code section 25189 or 

20 25189.2 for its violations of California Code of Regulations, title 22, section 66265.195. 

21 EIGHTH CAUSE OF ACTION 
(Treating Hazardous Waste without Permit) 

22 (California Health & Safety Code, section 25201(a)) 

23 65. Paragraphs 1 through 64 are re-alleged as if fully set forth herein. 

24 66. California Health and Safety Code provides that an owner or operator of a facility 

25 shall not treat hazardous waste at the facility without a permit or grant of authorization from the 

26 Depart·ment. 

27 III 

28 III 
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67. Defendant treated hazardous waste dust from its smog hogs by steam cleaning the 

2 dust into the Facility's underground oil-water separator approximately twice a year over a five 

3 year period. 

4 68. The Department's sampling of the smog hog dust showed that it was hazardous for 

5 zinc. 

6 69. Defendant is liable for civil penalties under Health and Safety Code section 25 J 89 or 

7 

8 

9 

25189.2. 
NINTH CAUSE OF ACTION 

(Failure 10 Properly Label Accumulation Times) 
(California Health and Safety Code, section 25189(a» 

1 0 70. Paragraphs I through 69 are re-alleged as if fully set forth herein. 

II 71. California Health and Safety Code, section 25189(a) states that a person who 

12 intentionally or negligently makes a false statement or representation in an application, label, 

13 manifest, record, report, permit, or other document used in compliance with this chapter shall be 

14 liable for civil penalty. 

15 72. Defendant negligently misrepresented the accumulation time of used oil stored onsite. 

16 73. During the October 27, 2011 inspection, the Department observed two 55 gallon 

17 containers of used oil with accumulation slart dates of April I, 20 11; one 55 gallon container of 

18 used oil with an accumulation start date of March 1, 2010 and·a fu ll date of August 31, 2010; one 

19 55 gallon container of used oil with an accumulation start date of April I, 20 II and a 

20 deteriorating label; and a 55 gallon container of used oil that was unlabeled. 

21 74. The labels on the used oil drums were continually labeled in a way that 

22 misrepresented the correct accumulation times. 

23 75. Defendant is liable for civil penalties under Health and Safety Code section 25189 or 

24 25189.2. 

25 III 

26 III 

27 III 

28 III 
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TENTH CAUSE OF ACTION 

(Improper Labeling of Hazardous Wastes) 
(California Code of Regulations, title 22, se~tion 66262.34(f) 

3 76. Paragraphs 1 tlrrough 7S are re-all,eged as if fully set forth herein. 

4 77. California Code of Regulations, title 22, section 66262.34(f) provides that a generator 

5 may store hazardous waste on site so long as it abides by the provisions of this section. 

6 78. Defendant failed to label one 55 gallon container of used oil; the hazardous waste 

7 label on a plastic roll around garbage can being used as a hazardous waste container for used 

8 grease sweep; the underground oi l water separator; one 55 gallon container of bag house dust; and 

9 failed to fill out a hazardous waste' label on the water jet cuUer waste. 

10 79. Defendant is liable for civil penalties under Health and Safety Code section 25 189 or 

II 25189.2 for its vio lations of California Code of Regulations, title 22, section 66262.34(f). 

12 ELEVENTH CAUSE OF ACTION 
(Improper Labeling of Hazardous .Wastes) 

13 (California Code of Regulations, title 22, section 66262.34(1) 

14 80. Paragraphs 1 through 79 are re-alleged as if fully set forth herein. 

15 81. California Code of Regulations, title 22, section 66268.7 states that a generator shall 

16 . determine if a waste has to be treated before 'it can be land disposed, California Code of 

17 Regulations, title 22, section 66268.29(d) lists baghouse waste from sources other than foundries 

18 that contain any of the metals or metal compounds identified in section 66261.24(a)(2) as 

19 res~ricted non-RCRA hazardous wastes subject to land disposal requirements, including but not 

20 limited to testing, tracking, -and record keeping. 

21 82. Defendant fai led to manage one 55 gallon container of baghouse dust hazardous for 

22 copper according to land disposal restrictions as set forth in California Code of Regulations, title 

23 22, section 66268. Defendant shipped one 55 gallon container of bag house dust as waste code 181 

24 (other inorganic waste) under manifest number 004837252 to a disposal facility without land 

25 disposal notification. 

26 83. Defendant is liable for civil penalties under Health and Safety Code section 25189 or 

27 25189.2 for its violations of California Code ofReguiations, title 22, sections 66268.7. 

28 / /I 
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REQUEST FOR RELIEF 

2 The Department requests that the Court grant the following relief: 

3 I. Enter judgment that Defendant has violated the HWCL as described in the FiTst 

4 through Eleventh Causes of Action; 

5 2. Enter judgment that Defendant is liable for civil penalties for violations orlhe HWCL 

6 · and its implementing regulations on the First through Eleventh Causes of Action, as authorized by 

7 Health and Safety Code section 25189, or, in the alternative, by Health and Safety Code section 

8 25189.2, for each day of each violation according to proof; 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

3. 

3. 

Enter the StipulatioJ), for Entry of Final Judgment executed by the Parties; 

Grant the Department its costs of suit herein; and 

4. Grant such other and further relief as the court deems jusl and proper. 

\~!V 
Dated: February k. 20 14 

OK20J2507726 

Respectfully Submitted, 

KAMALA D. HARRIS 
Attorney General of California 
JANII.L L. RICHARDS 
Supervising Deputy Attorney General 

Original sig·ned by Jamie Jefferson 

Deputy Attorney General 
Attorneys/or People a/the Slate of 
California ex rei. California Department of 
Toxic Substances Conrrol 
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